
 
 

AGENDA 
City of Lucas  

City Council Meeting  
March 5, 2020 

7:00 PM  
City Hall – Council Chambers 

665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas  
 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Lucas City Council will be held on Thursday, March 5, 2020 at 7:00 pm at Lucas City 
Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be discussed.  As authorized by 
Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking 
confidential legal advice from the City Attorney on any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting.  
 
Call to Order  
 

• Roll Call 
• Determination of Quorum  
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Citizen Input  
The Citizen Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject.  By completing a 
“Request to Speak” form and submitting to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to speak at the City Council meeting.  
However, in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council cannot discuss issues raised or make any decisions but 
may refer items to City Staff for research and possible inclusion on a future agenda.  
 
1. Citizen Input (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 
Community Interest  
Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items: 1) expression of thanks, 
congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of individuals; 4) reminders about upcoming 
City Council events; 5) information about community events; and 6) announcements involving imminent threat to public health and 
safety.  
 
2. Items of Community Interest. (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 
Consent Agenda  
All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommended to the City Council for a single vote approval.  
If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote.  
 
3. Consent Agenda:  
 

A) Approval of the minutes of the February 20, 2020 City Council meeting. 
 

B) Consider amending the Fiscal Year 19/20 budget to reallocate funds totaling 
$5,182,213.74 for capital improvements and operating costs previously approved in Fiscal 
Year 18/19. 



 
C) Approval of the City of Lucas Investment Report for quarter ending December 31, 2019.  

 
D) Approval of Resolution R 2020-03-00498 accepting the voluntary annexation petition 

submitted by McCreary Donihoo Partners LTD for the Estates of Stinson Highlands 
annexing a territory currently in the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction consisting of 
approximately 30.6018 acres of land more or less located in the John Gray Survey, 
Abstract 349 located at the southwest corner of Stinson Road and Highland Drive.  
 

E) Approval of Resolution R 2020-03-00499 accepting the termination to abandon a license 
agreement with Justine and Angela Himmelreich to use a Right of Way dedicated to the 
City by the Lucas Creek Estates Plat for use as a driveway for 2515 Orr Road.   

 
Regular Agenda  
 
4. Consider a request by the Forest Creek Estates Architectural Control Committee to: 

A) leave the two Forest Creek Estates subdivision signs currently located on City right-of-
way at the intersection of Blondy Jhune Road and Mary Lee Lane; and 

B) to replace the existing Forest Creek Park sign and fund half the cost of the new park 
signage. (Forest Creek Estates Architectural Control Committee Member Andre Guillemaud and 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
5. Consider the acceptance and approval of the City of Lucas Comprehensive Annual Financial 

Report (CAFR) for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 presented by Brooks Watson & Co. (Finance 
Director Liz Exum) 

 
6. Consider authorizing the City Manager to amend the scope of the professional services 

agreement between Birkhoff, Hendricks & Carter and the City of Lucas dated April 1, 2019, 
for the drainage analysis of the Reid Branch Tributary 1, which includes the Lemontree 
Country Estates and Kingswood Estates neighborhoods including flow maps and findings 
associated with neighborhood site visits in the amount not to exceed $9,585.00 from the FY 
19-20 budget account Professional Fees 11-6209-309 using General Fund Reserves. (City 
Engineer Stanton Foerster) 

 
7. Consider reallocating funds in the amount of $270,000 in account 11-8210-420 associated 

with the purchase of a Gradall, to fund the purchase a Skid Steer in the amount of $97,983 
and a Crack Pro Road Sealing Machine in the amount of $62,578. (Development Services 
Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
8. Discuss and provide direction to staff on proposed updates to the City of Lucas Trails Master 

Plan by adding a trail along the east side of Winningkoff Road which would connect to East 
Winningkoff Road and to the trail proposed along East Lucas Road and discuss any other 
proposed revisions to the Plan. (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 

  



 
9. Discuss and consider 1) an update on the Customer City Coalition activities relating to the 

North Texas Municipal Water District; 2) next steps with the Coalition; and (3) authorizing 
the Mayor to write the Public Utility Commission (PUC) expressing the City of Lucas’ 
support for the position asserted by the Cities of Garland, Mesquite, Plano and Richardson 
and urging the Commission to initiate the cost-of-service hearing being sought by those cities. 
(City Councilmember Wayne Millsap) 

 
Executive Session Agenda  
Pursuant to Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may convene into closed Executive Session for the 
purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 
This meeting is closed to the public as provided in the Texas Government Code.  
 
10. Executive Session:  
 

An Executive Session is not scheduled for this meeting.  
 

As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may 
convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice 
from the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. This 
meeting is closed to the public as provided in the Texas Government Code.   
  

11. Reconvene from Executive Session and take any action necessary as a result of the Executive 
Session.  

 
12. Adjournment.  
 
Certification  
I do hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin board at Lucas 
City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us on or before 5:00 p.m. on  
February 28, 2020.   
 
 

___________________________   
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 

 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations for persons 
attending public meetings at City Hall. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be directed to City Secretary Stacy 
Henderson at 972.912.1211 or by email at shenderson@lucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 



Item No. 01 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 5, 2020 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Citizen Input  
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
  
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 



Item No. 02 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 5, 2020 
 

 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
2. Items of Community Interest.  
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 
 
 



Item No. 03 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 5, 2020 
 

Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson 
 Finance Director Liz Exum 
 Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
3. Consent Agenda:  
 

A) Approval of the minutes of the February 20, 2020 City Council meeting. 
 

B)    Consider amending the Fiscal Year 19/20 budget to reallocate funds totaling  
$5,182,213.74 for capital improvements and operating costs previously approved in 
Fiscal Year 18/19. 

 
C) Approval of the City of Lucas Investment Report for quarter ending December 31, 

2019.  
 

D) Approval of Resolution R 2020-03-00498 accepting the voluntary annexation petition 
submitted by McCreary Donihoo Partners LTD for the Estates of Stinson Highlands 
annexing a territory currently in the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction consisting of 
approximately 30.6018 acres of land more or less located in the John Gray Survey, 
Abstract 349 located at the southwest corner of Stinson Road and Highland Drive.  

 
E)  Approval of Resolution R 2020-03-00499 accepting the termination to abandon a 

license agreement with Justine and Angela Himmelreich to use a Right of Way 
dedicated to the City by the Lucas Creek Estates Plat for use as a driveway for 2515 
Orr Road.   

 
Background Information  
 
Agenda Item 3B:  
 
The attached spreadsheet details outstanding contract balances by vendor, account number and 
funding source.  Each of these contracts were previously budgeted during Fiscal Year 18-19.  
Reallocation is necessary to properly encumber outstanding contract balances in Fiscal  
Year 19-20. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Minutes of the February 20, 2020 City Council meeting  
2.  Reallocated Funding for Capital Projects 
3.  Quarterly Investment Report 
4. Resolution R 2020-03-00498 Accepting Voluntary Annexation Petition  
5. Resolution R 2020-03-00499 License Agreement Termination 



Item No. 03 
 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 5, 2020 
 

 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
City Staff recommends approval of the Consent Agenda.  
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.   



1 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  F e b r u a r y  2 0 ,  2 0 2 0  

City of  Lucas 
City Council Meeting 

February 20, 2020 
7:00 P.M. 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas 
 

MINUTES 
Call to Order  
 
Mayor Olk called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
City Councilmembers Present: 
Mayor Jim Olk 
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember Wayne Millsap   
Councilmember Tim Baney  
Councilmember Steve Duke 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher 
 
City Councilmember Absent:  
Councilmember Philip Lawrence  
 

City Staff Present: 
City Manager Joni Clarke 
City Secretary Stacy Henderson  
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn   
City Engineer Stanton Foerster  
Fire Chief Ted Stephens  

Mayor Olk determined that a quorum was present. Everyone was reminded to silence their cell 
phones and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited.   
 
Citizen Input 
 
1.  Citizen Input. 
 
John Ballis, 1820 Winningkoff, expressed his concern about safety on Winningkoff Road due to 
excessive speeding and asked that an item be placed on a future City Council agenda to address this 
concern.  He also asked when the study would be completed to determine if a stop sign was 
warranted at Blondy Jhune and Winningkoff. 
 
Mayor Olk asked that Mr. Ballis speak with the City Engineer to discuss further the roadway 
improvements proposed for Winningkoff Road and when the study for the stop sign would be 
completed.  
 
Community Interest 
 
2. Items of Community Interest. 
 
Mayor Olk noted the following upcoming events:  

• The City’s cleanup event, along with electronic recycling and paper shredding would be 
held on Saturday, April 4 from 8 am to 12 pm.  
 



2 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  F e b r u a r y  2 0 ,  2 0 2 0  

• The City’s Parks and Open Space Board will be hosting Movie in the Park on Friday, 
April 17 at 7pm.  

• The first farmers market for 2020 will be held on April 25 from 8 am to 12 pm at the 
Community Park.  

• The City is host early voting and Election Day voting at the Community Center for the 
Presidential Primary Election on March 3.  

 
City Manager Joni Clarke stated that Mayor Olk and Councilmembers Millsap and Fisher would be 
attending the NTMWD meeting on February 28 to discuss issues regarding the regional system and 
customer cities and will report back an overview from that meeting.  
 
Councilmember Fisher noted that April 1 was Census Day and explained that redistricting would 
most likely take place after the census was completed and new numbers were reported.  
 
Consent Agenda  
 
3. Consent Agenda:  
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the February 6, 2020 City Council meeting.  
 

MOTION:  A motion was made by Councilmember Fisher, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, 
to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimously by a 
6 to 0 vote.  

 
Regular Agenda  
 
4. Consider approving the Technology Committee’s recommendation to acquire the 

services of a consultant to conduct a broadband network design and financial model 
and appropriate $56,625 from unrestricted general fund reserves to the Technology 
Fund (Fund No. 12) line item 12-6800-309 professional services.  

 
Assistant to the City Manager Kent Souriyasak gave a presentation discussing the timeline of the 
broadband study, the RFP proposals received, and the ranking of the proposals. Mr. Souriyasak 
stated that the top two proposals were Magellan Advisors and Fujitsu Network Communications.  
 
Paul Rathgeb, Chairman of the Technology Committee explained that the Committee reviewed all 
the proposals received and scored them independently.  From that review, the Technology 
Committee recommended Magellan Advisors.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Peele asked if there was anything significantly different between the top two 
proposals that made Magellan Advisors stand out.  
 
Troy Dechant, Technology Committee member, stated that the RFP asked for a model that the City 
could use based on analysis and Magellan demonstrated everything that they would do for the City 
and was easy to follow. Fujitsu Network discussed their proprietary items and that they would 
generate reports but were not as flexible as what the City may need. Mr. Dechant noted that Fujitsu 
was a manufacturer of the products the City may end up acquiring and because of the proprietary 
nature, could affect the proposal.  
 



3 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  F e b r u a r y  2 0 ,  2 0 2 0  

Jamie Gibson, Technology Committee member stated that should the City Council not choose 
Magellan Advisors, the Committee would like to review the second and third proposal for further 
recommendations.  
 
Councilmember Millsap stated that should the City proceed; this would be considered a utility 
function and the utility fund should be used rather than the general fund.  
 
Councilmember Fisher suggested that legal advice should be obtained before switching from the 
general fund to the utility fund given the City had not designated internet use as a utility function.  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Peele, seconded by Councilmember Duke to 

approve City staff to acquire the services of Magellan Advisors to conduct a 
broadband network design and financial model and appropriate $56,625 from 
unrestricted general fund reserves to the Technology Fund, line item 12-6800-309 
professional services. The motion passed unanimously by a 6 to 0 vote.  

 
5. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with TexasBit/APAC 

for FY 19-20 roadway maintenance in the amount not to exceed $483,228 and identify 
priority streets.  

 
City Engineer Stanton Foerster discussed potential roadway and crack seal projects that could be 
considered as part of the FY 19-20 roadway maintenance and that higher volume roadways were the 
focus.  Mr. Foerster recommended moving forward with funding of Forest Grove Road from 
Stonegate to Orr Road and West Lucas Road as paving projects, as well as the crack seal projects on 
Blondy Jhune Road, Christian Lane, Edgefield Lane, Estelle Lane, Forest Grove Road from Country 
Club to Stonegate, Snider Lane, Stinson Road from West Lucas Road to Bentwater and Winningkoff 
from the reverse curve to East Lucas Road.  
 
Mr. Foerster discussed how the road would be constructed, including milling procedures. 
 
The City Council discussed roadways in need of repair, roads that would require complete 
reconstruction, and roadways that may require being placed on the capital improvement plan.  
 
Harold Freshcoln, 4 Cimarron suggested that the City Council submit a claim against Sinacola 
Construction as they were the contractor for TxDOT on the Parker Road project and have 
destroyed portions of the road on Santa Fe, Cimarron and Chisholm.  Mr. Freshcoln shared pictures 
with the Council showing the damage. 
 
Mr. Foerster stated that staff received a complaint and did witness the damage to the staging area.  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Baney, seconded by Councilmember Millsap 

to approve authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with 
TexasBit/APAC for the FY 19-20 roadway maintenance 11-8209-301 for a total 
amount not to exceed $483,228 for the crack sealing projects and paving of Forest 
Grove Road and West Lucas Road.  The motion passed unanimously by a 6 to 0 
vote.  

 
6. Consider approving Resolution 2020-02-00497 supporting the City of Lucas 

applying for the FY 2019-2020 Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response 
(SAFER) Grant.  



4 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  F e b r u a r y  2 0 ,  2 0 2 0  

 
Fire Chief Ted Stephens stated that he was asking for approval to apply for the SAFER grant.  If the 
City were approved for the grant, the SAFER grant would pay for costs for an entry level firefighter 
for the first two years, and 35% of the cost in year three.  The City would be responsible for all costs 
starting in year four.  
 
The City Council was in agreement that the grant could be applied for; however, should the grant be 
approved, and the City determined that funding future positions was not available, the funds could 
be denied.  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Councilmember Duke 

to approve Resolution R 2020-02-00497 supporting applying for the FY 2019-2020 
SAFER grant.  The motion passed unanimously by a 6 to 0 vote.  

 
7. Consider entering into an Interlocal Agreement with Collin County regarding the 

Collin County Parks and Open Space Project Funding Assistance Program Grant in 
the amount of $100,000 to fund for professional engineering design services 
associated with the Community Trail Project and appropriate $123,339 from 
unrestricted general fund reserves to line item 11-6211-417 park improvements.  

 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn stated that the City applied for a Collin County 
Parks and Open Space Project Funding Assistance Grant in the amount of $111,669 to fund 
engineering services for the Community Trail project. The City was awarded a grant in the 
amount of $100,000. However, the City also applied for a corresponding TxDOT Safe Routes to 
School grant but was not chosen to receive this grant.  Staff recommends declining the Collin 
County Parks and Open Spaces grant funds totaling $100,000 in lieu of not receiving the TxDOT 
grant.  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Duke, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 

Peele, to decline the funding of $100,000 awarded by the Collin County Parks and 
Open Space Project Funding Assistance program grant. The motion passed 
unanimously by a 6 to 0 vote.  

 
Executive Session  
 
8. Executive Session. 
 

The City Council will convene into closed Executive Session as permitted under the Texas 
Government Code, Section 551.072 to deliberate the purchase, sale, exchange, lease or value 
of real property located within the City of Lucas.  
  

The City Council convened into Executive Session at 8:09 pm.  
 

9. Reconvene from Executive Session.  
 
The City Council reconvened from Executive Session at 8:44 pm.  There was no action taken as a 
result of the Executive Session.  
  



5 | P a g e   C i t y  C o u n c i l  
  F e b r u a r y  2 0 ,  2 0 2 0  

 
Adjournment  
 
10. Adjournment.  
 
MOTION:  A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Councilmember 

Duke to adjourn the meeting at 8:44 pm. The motion passed unanimously by a 6 to 
0 vote.  

 
 
APPROVED:       ATTEST: 
 
 
        ____________________________ 
Mayor Jim Olk  Stacy Henderson, City Secretary  



City of Lucas
Fiscal Year 2019-2020
Re-allocated Funding for Capital Projects & Operating Accounts

Budgeted through Paid through Reclassification Reallocated Budget
Account No Vendor Project Fiscal Year 18/19 Fiscal Year 18/19 Fiscal Year 19/20 Fiscal Year 19/20

By Contract - Capital Projects
21-8210-490-124 Lakes Engineering Prog Mgmt North Pump Station Water  #125 34,973.00$                -$                                34,973.00$                     
21-8210-490-125 BW2 Elevated Water Tower Design 72,880.00$                -$                                72,880.00$                     
21-8210-490-125 TBD Elevated Water Tower Construction 2,677,240.00$           -$                                (1,603,029.00)$        1,074,211.00$                
21-8210-490-127 TBD SCADA Water System 100,000.00$              100,000.00$                   
21-8210-491-126 Birkhoff West Lucas Road/Country Club Intersection 27,396.61$                1,443.00$                      25,953.61$                     
21-8210-491-126 TBD Construction West Lucas Road/Country Club Intersection 267,300.39$              267,300.39$                   
21-8210-491-127 Birkhoff Winningkoff Road Reverse Curve to Snider Lane 108,982.83$              30,201.06$                    78,781.77$                     
21-8210-491-127 Mcmahon Contracting Winningkoff Road Reverse Curve to Snider Lane 1,615,176.78$           -$                                1,615,176.78$                
21-8210-491-127 Contingency Winningkoff Road Reverse Curve to Snider Lane 80,758.84$                2,880.00$                      77,878.84$                     
21-8210-491-128 Mcmahon Contracting Stinson Road Parker Road to Bristol Park 2,554,723.56$           1,513,859.20$              1,040,864.36$                
21-8210-491-128 Contingency Stinson Road Parker Road to Bristol Park 127,736.18$              9,840.00$                      117,896.18$                   
21-8210-491-129 Lakes Engineering Blondy Jhune Road West Bridge to Winningkoff Road 10,815.00$                10,590.00$                    225.00$                          
21-8210-491-129 Mcmahon Contracting Blondy Jhune Road West Bridge to Winningkoff Road 2,605,334.80$           2,095,849.19$              509,485.61$                   
21-8210-491-129 Contingency Blondy Jhune Road West Bridge to Winningkoff Road 130,266.98$              47,138.00$                    83,128.98$                     
21-8210-491-131 Lakes Engineering Prog Mgmt Winningkoff Road Reverse # 127 -$                                 
21-8210-491-132 Lakes Engineering Prog Mgmt Stinson Rd # 128 104,918.00$              139,502.85$                  (34,584.85)$                    
21-8210-491-133 Lakes Engineering Prog Mgmt Blondy Jhune # 129 139,890.00$              131,711.82$                  8,178.18$                       
21-8210-491-500 Birkhoff Brockdale Estates/Hillwood 38,795.00$                4,725.00$                      34,070.00$                     

Total Capital Projects 10,697,187.97$         3,987,740.12$              5,106,418.85$                

Operating Accounts:
11-6209-309 Birkhoff Lemontree Drainage 29,980.00$                17,276.57$                    12,703.43$                     
11-8209-301 TBD Emergency Bridge Repairs 8-1-19 100,000.00$              42,688.54$                    57,311.46$                     
11-6300-232 DFW Camper Topper/Stripping from hail damage 3-25-19 5,780.00$                  5,780.00$                       

Total Operating 135,760.00$              59,965.11$                    -$                          75,794.89$                     
Grand Total 10,832,947.97$         4,047,705.23$              -$                          5,182,213.74$                

Re-allocation summary by account number Description
21-8210-490-124 Prog Mgmt North Pump Station Water  #125 34,973.00$                2017 Certificates of Obligation
21-8210-490-125 Elevated Water Tower 1,147,091.00$           2017 Certificates of Obligation
21-8210-490-127 SCADA System 100,000.00$              2017 Certificates of Obligation
21-8210-491-126 West Lucas Road/Country Club Intersection 293,254.00$              2019 Certificates of Obligation/Impact Fees/Restricted Reserves
21-8210-491-127 Winningkoff Road Reverse Curve to Snider Lane 1,771,837.39$           2019 Certificates of Obligation/Impact Fees/Restricted Reserves
21-8210-491-128 Stinson Road Parker Road to Bristol Park 1,158,760.54$           2019 Certificates of Obligation/Impact Fees/Restricted Reserves
21-8210-491-129 Blondy Jhune Road West Bridge to Winningkoff Road 592,839.59$              2019 Certificates of Obligation/Impact Fees/Restricted Reserves
21-8210-491-132 Prog Mgmt Stinson Rd # 128 (34,584.85)$               2019 Certificates of Obligation/Impact Fees/Restricted Reserves
21-8210-491-133 Prog Mgmt Blondy Jhune # 129 8,178.18$                  2019 Certificates of Obligation/Impact Fees/Restricted Reserves
21-8210-491-500 Brockdale Estates/Hillwood 34,070.00$                Brockdale Funding
11-6209-309 Professional Services Lemontree drainage 12,703.43$                FY 19-20 excess revenue over expense
11-8209-301 Roadway Improvements Emergency Bridge Repair 57,311.46$                FY 19-20 excess revenue over expense
11-6300-232 Auto Maintenance Topper/stripping hailstorm damage 5,780.00$                  FY 19-20 excess revenue over expense

5,182,213.74$           

Funding Source





City of Lucas, Texas 
Resolution R 2020-03-00498 Approving Voluntary Annexation Petition of McCreary Donihoo Partners, LTD. 
Approved: March 5, 2020  Page 1 

RESOLUTION NO. R 2020-03-00498 
[Accepting Voluntary Annexation Petition of McCreary  

Donihoo Partners, Ltd.] 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNSEL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, TEXAS, ACCEPTING A VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION 
PETITION AND AUTHORIZING THE SETTING OF A DATE, 
TIME, AND PLACE FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE 
CONTEMPLATED ANNEXATION DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A” 
AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT “B” ATTACHED HERETO AND 
MADE A PART HEREOF FOR ALL PURPOSES (“ANNEXATION 
AREA”), BY THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS; AUTHORIZING AND 
DIRECTING CITY STAFF TO PUBLISH NOTICE OF SUCH 
HEARINGS, WITH THE INSTITUTION OF THE ANNEXATION 
PROCEEDINGS, BY ADOPTION OF THE ANNEXATION 
ORDINANCE TO OCCUR AT A REGULAR CALLED CITY 
COUNCIL SESSION, AND TO PREPARE A SERVICE PLAN FOR 
THE ANNEXATION AREA; SAID ANNEXATION AREA BEING 
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A” AND 
DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT “B”; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lucas has received a petition for voluntary annexation for the 
Annexation Area described and depicted in Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B” from McCreary Donihoo 
Partners, Ltd.; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Lucas City Council believes it is in the best interest of the City to annex 
certain properties into the City of Lucas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Annexation Area is adjacent to and within the extraterritorial jurisdiction 
of the City of Lucas, Texas, under the terms of Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government Code; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Annexation Area is economically and geographically within the natural 
growth pattern of the City of Lucas, Texas, and adaptable for future development under the master 
development plan for the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Annexation Area described and depicted in Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B” 
is exempt from the Municipal Annexation Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Lucas City Council wishes for all interested persons to be heard in a 
manner prescribed by state law before said annexation action is considered; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Lucas City Council wishes to inform all citizens and interested persons 
so that the impacts of said annexation is well understood by all interested parties prior to a final 
decision to annex the Annexation Area; 



City of Lucas, Texas 
Resolution R 2020-03-00498 Approving Voluntary Annexation Petition of McCreary Donihoo Partners, LTD. 
Approved: March 5, 2020  Page 2 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LUCAS, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. On the 19th day of March, 2020, at a regular called City Council meeting at 
7:00 p.m., in the City Council Chamber, Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 
75002-7651, the Lucas City Council will hold a public hearing giving all interested persons the 
right to appear and be heard on the proposed voluntary annexations by the City of Lucas, Texas, 
of the Annexation Area described and depicted in Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B”. 
 
 SECTION 3. Following the public hearing and presentation of the annexation ordinance, 
the Lucas City Council shall institute the annexation proceedings by adoption of the annexation 
ordinance for the area described and depicted in Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B”. 
 
 SECTION 4. Pursuant to Section 43.0672 of the Local Government Code, the parties 
have negotiated and entered into a written agreement for the services to be provided for the 
Annexation Area.  
 
 SECTION 5. City Staff is hereby authorized and directed to finalize the boundary 
description and land area total for the Annexation Area in preparation for publication in notices of 
public hearings. 
 
 SECTION 6. Pursuant to Section 43.0682 of the Local Government Code, the City shall 
provide the Services as listed in Exhibit “C”. 
 
 SECTION 7. City Staff is hereby authorized and directed to cause a notice of such public 
hearing to be published once only in a newspaper having general circulation in the City and in the 
above-described Annexation Area not more than twenty (20) days nor less than ten (10) days prior 
to the date of such public hearing, all in accordance with Chapter 43.052, Texas Local Government 
Code. 
 
 SECTION 8. City Staff is hereby directed to prepare a service plan for the proposed 
Annexation Area and make said service plan available for public review in the City Council 
Chamber, Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651, on or before the 
19th day of March, 2020. 
 
 SECTION 7. That this Resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage, 
and it is accordingly so resolved. 
 
 DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, 
on the 5th day of March, 2020. 
 



City of Lucas, Texas 
Resolution R 2020-03-00498 Approving Voluntary Annexation Petition of McCreary Donihoo Partners, LTD. 
Approved: March 5, 2020  Page 3 

ATTEST:      APPROVED:  
 
 
________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary    Jim Olk, Mayor 
(02-18-2020:TM 113919)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 



Exhibit “A” 
City of Lucas, Texas 
Resolution R 2020-03-00498 Approving Voluntary Annexation Petition of McCreary Donihoo Partners, LTD. 
Approved: March 5, 2020  Page 4 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Legal Description of Annexation Area 



Exhibit “A” 
City of Lucas, Texas 
Resolution R 2020-03-00498 Approving Voluntary Annexation Petition of McCreary Donihoo Partners, LTD. 
Approved: March 5, 2020  Page 5 

BENG A TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS OUT OF THE JOHN GRAY SURVEY, ABSTRACT 
NO. 349 AND BEING ALL OF A 2 ACRE TRACT OF LAND AND ALL OF A 28 ACRE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO 
LESLIE MCCREARY AND GLADYS MCCREARY ACCORDING TO THE DEED FILED FOR RECORD IN VOLUME 595, 
PAGE 197, DEED RECORDS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS AND BEING ALL OF TRACT TWO AND TRACT THREE 
CONVEYED TO MCCREARY. FAMILY TRUST ACCORDING TO THE DEED FILED FOR RECORD IN VOWME 4844, 
PAGE 2894, DEED RECORDS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY 
METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT A P.K. NAIL FOUND IN ASPHALT IN STINSON ROAD, AN UNDEDICATED RIGHT-OF-WAY, THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 28 ACRE TRACT, THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF A 27.278'ACRE TRACT OF LAND 
CONVEYED TO JOHN A. YOUNG AND PATSY DEAN YOUNG ACCORDING TO THE DEED FILED FOR RECORD IN 
VOLUME 5167, PAGE 3453, DEED RECORDS, COLLIN COUNTY,. TEXAS, AND THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF A 
29.185 ACRE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO YOUNG DEAN HOMESTEAD, LTD. ACCORDING TO THE DEED 
FILED FOR RECORD IN VOLUME 5167, PAGE 3443, DEED RECORDS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS; 

THENCE, DEPARTING STINSON ROAD AND ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 28 ACRE TRACT AND.THE 
NORTH LINE OF SAID 27.278 ACRE TRACT, SOUTH 89 DEGREES, 34 MINUTES, 08 SECONDS WEST, A 
DISTANCE OF 1349.62 FEECTO A 5/8" IRON ROD SET WITH RED PLASTIC CAP STAMPED "R.P.L.S. 5199", THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 28 ACRE TRACT, THE 'NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 27.278 ACRE TRACT, 
AND LYING IN THE MOST SOUTHERLY EAST LINE OF A 143.35 ACRE TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO SUE W. 
HODGDON ACCORDING TO THE DEED FILED FOR RECORD IN VOLUME 587, PAGE 38, DEED RECORDS, 
COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS; 

THENCE, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID 2 ACRE TRACT AND SAID 28 ACRE TRACT, AND THE MOST 
SOUTHERLY EAST LINE OF SAID 143-35•ACRE TRACT, AS AFFECTED BY BOUNDARY LINE AGREEMENT 
RECORDED IN THE COUNTY CLERK'S FILE NO..20060428000567740, DEED RECORDS, COLLIN COUNTY, 
TEXAS, NORTH 00 DEGREES, 03 MINUTES, 58 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 989.29 FEET TO A 5/8" 
IRON.ROD SET WITH PLASTIC CAP STAMPED "R.P.L.S. 5199", THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 2 ACRE 
TRACT, FROM WHICH A 3/8" IRON ROD FOUND BEARS SOUTH 89 DEGREES, 42 MINUTES, 44 SECONDS, WEST, 
A DISTANCE OF 7:68 FEET, A 1/2" IRON ROD FOUND WITH CAP STAMPED "R.P.L.S. 5439" BEARS NORTH 89 
DEGREES, 42 MINUTES, 44 SECONDS, EAST, A DISTANCE OF 7.68 FEET; 

THENCE, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID:2 ACRE TRACT, AND THE MOST EASTERLY SOUTH LINE OF SAID 
143.35 ACRE TRACT, NORTH .89 DEGREES, 42 MINUTES, 44 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 1349.95 FEET TO 
A P.K. NAIL SET IN STINSON ROAD,THE.NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 2 ACRE TRACT, A SOUTHEASTERLY 
CORNER OF SAID 143.35 ACRE TRACT AND LYING IN THE WESTERLY LINE OF A 26.027 ACRE TRACT OF LAND 
CONVEYED TO WARREN L NORRIS ACCORDING TO THE DEED FILED FOR RECORD IN VOLUME 5009, PAGE 
699, DEED RECORDS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS; 

THENCE, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID 2 ACRE TRACT AND SAID• 28 ACRE TRACT, AND THE WESTERLY 
LINE OF SAID 26.027 ACRE TRACT, AND ALONG STINSON ROAD, SOUTH 00 DEGREES, 05 MINUTES, 11 
SECONDS WEST, PASSING THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 26.027 ACRE TRACT, THE NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF SAID 29.185 ACRE TRACT AT 72.79 FEET, AND CONTINUING ALONG THE COMMON LINE OF 
SAID 28 ACRE TRACT, SAID 29.185 ACRE TRACT, AND ALONG STINSON ROAD FOR A TOTAL DISTANCE-OF 
985.92 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 1,333,015 SQUARE FEET OR 30.6018 ACRES 
OF LAND, MORE OR LESS. 

Note: The Company -Is* prohibited from insuring the area or quantity Of the land described herein. Any statement 
In the above legal description of the area or quantity of land is not a representation that such area or quantity is 
correct, but is made only for informational and/or identification purposes and does not override Item 2 of 
Schedule B hereof. 

First American Title Insurance Company First American Title Insurance Company 
Texas Commitment T-7 (Rev. 6-27-02) 

 

Valid Only If Schedule A, 8, C, D and Cover are attached 

 

..... ..... •• - • 



Exhibit “B” 
City of Lucas, Texas 
Resolution R 2020-03-00498 Approving Voluntary Annexation Petition of McCreary Donihoo Partners, LTD. 
Approved: March 5, 2020  Page 6 

EXHIBIT “B” 
Depiction of Annexation Area 

 

 
 
 
 

 



Exhibit “A” 
City of Lucas, Texas 
Resolution R 2020-03-00499 Terminating Right of Way Use License and Hold Harmless Agreement 
Approved: March 5, 2020  Page 1 

RESOLUTION NO. R 2020-03-00499 
[TERMINATING RIGHT OF WAY USE LICENSE AND HOLD 

HARMLESS AGREEMENT] 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, TEXAS, TERMINATING THE RIGHT OF WAY USE 
LICENSE AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT ENTERED INTO 
BY THE CITY AND JUSTIN HIMMELREICH AND ANGELA 
HIMMELRIECH ON DECEMBER 18, 2019; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lucas entered into the Right of Way Use License and Hold 
Harmless Agreement with Justin Himmelreich and Angela Himmelreich on December 18, 2019 
(the “Agreement”), attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof.; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Justin Himmelreich and Angela Himmelreich have requested the City 
terminate the Agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, upon full review and consideration of the request to terminate the Agreement 
by Justin Himmelreich and Angela Himmelreich and all matters related thereto, the City Council 
is of the opinion and finds that the Agreement shall be terminated. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LUCAS, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. In accordance with the request by Justin Himmelreich and Angela 
Himmelreich, the City Council approves termination of the Agreement  
 
 SECTION 2. This Resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage, and 
it is accordingly so resolved. 
 
 DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, 
on the 5th day of March 2020. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED:  
 
 
________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary    Jim Olk, Mayor 
(02-26-2020:TM 114101)  
 
 
 
 
  



Exhibit “A” 
City of Lucas, Texas 
Resolution R 2020-03-00499 Terminating Right of Way Use License and Hold Harmless Agreement 
Approved: March 5, 2020  Page 2 

EXHIBIT “A” 
RIGHT OF WAY USE LICENSE AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT 





























Item No. 04 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 5, 2020 
 

Requester: Forest Creek Estates Architectural Control Committee Member Andre Guillemaud 
 Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider a request by the Forest Creek Estates Architectural Control Committee to: 

A) leave the two Forest Creek Estates subdivision signs currently located on City right-of-
way at the intersection of Blondy Jhune Road and Mary Lee Lane; and 

B) to replace the existing Forest Creek Park sign and fund half the cost of the new park 
signage.  

 
Background Information  
 
At the December 19, 2019 City Council meeting, the City Council considered several options 
presented by staff and the Forest Creek Estates Architectural Control Committee regarding the 
location of two Forest Creek Estates subdivision signs currently located on City right-of-way at 
the intersection of Blondy Jhune Road and Mary Lee Lane. 
 
One option was to install a Forest Creek Estates subdivision sign in Forest Creek Park located on 
Orchard Gap.  Because the new sign proposal is located within a City park, the City Council 
deferred the request to the Parks and Open Space Board to determine what type of signage would 
be appropriate in the City’s Park.  The City Council opted to leave the current subdivision signs 
in place until a recommendation from the Parks and Open Space Board is brought back to the 
City Council for consideration. 
 
The Parks and Open Space Board reviewed this item at their January 28, 2020 meeting, and after 
discussions with a member of the Forest Creek Architectural Control Committee, the Parks 
Board recommended replacing the existing sign at Forest Creek Park with a stone monument 
sign stating “Forest Creek Park” as a compromise that would benefit both the neighborhood and 
the park. 
 
City staff met with Forest Creek Park Architectural Control Committee Member Andre 
Guillemaud and proposed a cost sharing arrangement where the new park sign for Forest Creek 
Park would be replaced, and the City would pay 50% of the replacement costs, and the other 
50% would be paid by the Forest Creek Architectural Control Committee and leaving the 
existing Forest Creek Estates subdivision signs located on City right-of-way at the intersection of 
Blondy Jhune Road and Mary Lee Lane. 
 
Forest Creek Park Architectural Control Committee has committed to providing $1,700 towards 
the Forest Creek Park sign.  
 



Item No. 04 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 5, 2020 
 

Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Sign Quotes  
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
City staff obtained quotes for two different sign sizes that are included with this item.  
 

• 5 feet tall x 8 feet wide:  $3,950.00  
• 4 feet tall x 6 feet wide:  $3,500.00  

 
Recommendation   
 
Staff recommends leaving the two Forest Creek Estates subdivision signs currently located on 
City right-of-way at the intersection of Blondy Jhune Road and Mary Lee Lane in place with the 
understanding that the residents of the Forest Creek Estates will maintain the signs and 
landscaping and replace the existing Forest Creek Park sign and half of the funding coming from 
the Forest Creek Estates Architectural Control Committee. 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to leave the two Forest Creek Estates subdivision signs currently located on City 
right-of-way at the intersection of Blondy Jhune Road and Mary Lee Lane in place with the 
understanding that the residents of the Forest Creek Estates will maintain the signs and 
landscaping and replace the existing Forest Creek Park sign with a ____ feet tall x ____ feet 
wide sign with half of the funding coming from the Forest Creek Estates Architectural Control 
Committee. 



 
From: Roger Chung <roger@legacysignsoftexas.com>  
Sent: Monday, February 17, 2020 1:21 PM 
To: Donna Bradshaw <dbradshaw@lucastexas.us> 
Subject: Re: City of Lucas~Forest Creek Estates sign 
 
Hi Donna, Thanks for your patience. 
 
Please see my quote below... 
 
5ft tall X 8ft wide:  $3,950.00 
4Ft tall X 6 ft wide :  $3,500.00 
 
Foundation cost will be $300.00 - $600.00 additional based on final design(minimal foundation is 
included) 
If required, foundation engineering drawing will cost $550.00.  We can do this without but if the city 
wants the foundation engineered, I can order one. 
 
Both are with sandblasted stone encased inside of monument made with natural stone one choice + 
stone cap. 
Final product will be warrantied for 5 years. 
Regards 
Roger 
 
817.431.5700 Office 
214 434 7777 Cell 
 
Legacy Signs of Texas                        On Time Signs 
10375 Alta Vista Rd                             9966 Monroe Dr 
Fort Worth, 76244                               Dallas, Texas 75220 
www.legacysignsoftexas.com                   www.ontimesignsdallas.com 
TSCL #81934 
UL #100525-147 
 

mailto:roger@legacysignsoftexas.com
mailto:dbradshaw@lucastexas.us
tel:(817)%20431-5700
tel:(214)%20434-7777
http://www.legacysignsoftexas.com/
http://www.ontimsignsdallas.com/


Item No. 05 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 05, 2020 
 

Requester: Finance Director Liz Exum 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider the acceptance and approval of the City of Lucas Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report (CAFR) for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 presented by BrooksWatson & Co. 

Background Information  
 
The audit firm, BrooksWatson & Co. will be presenting the Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report (CAFR) for Fiscal Year 2018-2019.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. An electronic copy of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for Fiscal Year 

2018-2019 will be sent under separate cover. 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
Approve as presented. 
 
Motion  
 
I move to approve/deny the City of Lucas Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for 
Fiscal Year 2018-2019. 
 
 



Item No. 06 
 
 
 

 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 5, 2020 
 

Requester: City Engineer Stanton Foerster 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider authorizing the City Manager to amend the scope of the professional services 
agreement between Birkhoff, Hendricks & Carter and the City of Lucas dated April 1, 2019, for 
the drainage analysis of the Reid Branch Tributary 1, which includes the Lemontree Country 
Estates and Kingswood Estates neighborhoods including flow maps and findings associated with 
neighborhood site visits in the amount not to exceed $9,585.00 from the FY 19-20 budget 
account Professional Fees 11-6209-309 using General Fund Reserves. 
 
Background Information  
 
At the February 6, 2020, City Council meeting, City staff reviewed with the Council information 
obtained from several visits to the Lemontree/Kingswood neighborhood with Birkhoff Engineers 
after rain events to view existing drainage. Elements were identified that prohibited drainage 
such as swells and ditches that were no longer present due to lack of maintenance or silted in, 
along with significant drainage flow that had been impeded on the southern boundary of 
Kingswood.   
 
The City Council suggested the scope of the study done by Birkhoff, Hendricks & Carter include 
the Lynne Lane culvert towards Kingswood and determine the capacity of the culvert and if the 
flow was exceeding capacity. Council suggestions also included reviewing drainage from the 
Claremont Springs area and the possibility of redirecting the flow towards Country Club along 
Estates Parkway. 
 
Based on City Council comments from the February 6, 2020 City Council meeting, the scope of 
services has been amended to include calculating the capacity of the culvert crossing on Lynne 
Lane, culvert capacity on Citrus Way near the southeast corner of Lemontree Estates, berm 
design areas to redirect stormwater flow, and conceptual analysis to redirect stormwater flow.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Birkhoff Agreement Amendment 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
This is a $9,585.00 unbudgeted FY 19-20 expense requiring a budget amendment utilizing 
General Fund Reserves.       
 



Item No. 06 
 
 
 

 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 5, 2020 
 

Recommendation   
 
City staff recommends amending the Birkhoff contract to include the new items requested by the 
City Council. 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to authorize the City Manager to (amend/not amend) the scope of the 
professional services agreement for drainage analysis between Birkhoff, Hendricks & Carter and 
the City of Lucas dated April 1, 2019, in the amount not to exceed $9,585.00 from the FY 19-20 
budget account Professional Fees 11-6209-309 using General Fund Reserves. 







Item No. 07 
 

 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 5, 2020 
 

 
Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
  
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider reallocating funds in the amount of $270,000 in account 11-8210-420 associated with the 
purchase of a Gradall, to fund the purchase a Skid Steer in the amount of $97,983 and a Crack Pro 
Road Sealing Machine in the amount of $62,578. 
 
Background Information  
 
Staff brought forward a request to purchase a Gradall D 152 during the 2019/2020 budget process in 
the amount of $270,000 to address the City’s culvert and barrow ditch maintenance to help facilitate 
drainage.  Staff also requested the funding of an additional position in Public Works to serve as the 
equipment operator of the Gradall.  At the time of this request, staff was unsuccessful in obtaining the 
services of a contractor to address some of the maintenance activities and culvert replacement.  
Currently, the City has been able to retain contractors Structural Assurance, Select Excavation and 
Four Star Excavating that can perform this type of work and no longer believe that it is in the best 
interest of the City to purchase the Gradall.  In addition, the City was not successful in obtaining a 
Gradall operator and the City has been recruiting for that position since September 2019 without 
having received any qualified applicants. 
 
In lieu of the purchase of a Gradall D 152, staff is proposing purchasing a TL12V2 skid steer to allow 
staff to perform some drainage maintenance activities.  A TL12V2 skid steer is a large bobcat with a 
4-in-1 bucket and angle blade like a dozer for grading swales. This machine is more in line with what 
our current staff can operate. Staff rented this machine for clearing the Trinity Trails this summer and 
it is an effective machine with both low flow and high flow capabilities for operating attachments.   
 
The City uses TexasBit/APAC to perform street maintenance activities and what is being proposed for 
this year’s street maintenance activities is the inclusion of crack sealing on several roadways.  
However, with the purchase of the Crack Pro Road Sealing Machine, staff believes we would be able 
to supplement this activity and be more proactive in addressing roadway maintenance in a timely and 
proactive manner. Many roads are starting to deteriorate due to lack of maintenance.   
 
Staff also investigated a renting option that does not appear to be cost effective. There is also concern 
with availability. There are seven (7) available for lease.  There are already other cities renting these 
machines as well, so that a machine may not be available when needed. Staff feels it would need the 
machine for six (6) to eight (8) weeks annually.  
  
Public Works is working to proactively address the filling of potholes, crack sealing and other basic 
street maintenance activities, as well as other minor maintenance needs with the goal of preventing 
further deterioration resulting in the need for more costly roadway maintenance such as resurfacing. 
 
  



Item No. 07 
 

 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 5, 2020 
 

 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  

 
1. Crack Pro Road Crack Sealing Machine Brochure  
2. Crack Pro Road Crack Sealing Machine Estimate 
3. TL12V2 Skid Steer Brochure 
4. TL12V2 Skid Steer Estimate   
5. Renting estimates for crack sealing machine.            

 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 

1. Reallocate $97,983 from the general fund 11-8210-420 to purchase the TL12V2 Skid Steer 
2. Reallocate $62,578 from the general fund 11-8210-420 to purchase the Crack Pro Road 

Sealing Machine  
 
Note: This leaves an unencumbered balance of $109,439 in general fund line item11-8210-420.  
  
Recommendation  
 
Staff is recommending reallocation of funds appropriated for a Gradall D 152 to fund the purchase of a 
TL12V2 Skid Steer and the Crack Pro Road Sealing Machine.    
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny reallocating funds associated with the purchase of a Gradall D 152 to 
fund the purchase a Skid Steer in the amount of $97,983 and a Crack Pro Road Sealing Machine in the 
amount of $62,578. 



EQUIPMENT68

CRACK PRO®  
HEATED HOSE MACHINES
OIL-JACKETED MELTER / APPLICATORS  
FOR HOT POUR CRACK SEALING MATERIALS

Both the burner and the engine are powered by diesel fuel for 
maximum safety, efficiency, and performance.

Crack Pro Heated Hose Machine Features:

• State-of-the-art heated hose maintains material temperature 
   throughout the application process
• 30% larger heating unit for the industry's fastest heat-up  
   and recovery time
• Digital Control Center with protective cover. Control Center  
 offers  AC gauge to monitor heating of electric hose
• Anti-Splash Material Loading Hatch for safer loading of  
   sealant materials
• Insulated with 1.5" ceramic, covered by a 16 gauge steel  
 outer body
• Electro-hydraulic manifold with flow control for pump and  
   mixer speeds
• Liquid Cooled Kubota Diesel Engine
• Diesel fired Beckett Burners are electronically controlled with 
   auto shut off
• Horn button on wand notifies driver to move ahead or back
• Direct-Drive FWD/REV Full Sweep Agitation

TR 125 & 260 DA Model Features:

• Direct Drive Air Compressor with 100' x 5/8"  
 Reeled Hose & Wand
• V1505 Kubota Diesel Engine

Digital Control Center
with protective cover

Anti-Splash Material 
Loading Hatch

Electro-hydraulic 
manifold

Liquid Cooled Kubota 
Diesel Engine Standard

Horn button on wand

A L L  D I E S E L  P O W E R  F O R  M A X I M U M  E F F I C I E N C Y !

PRODUCT # DESCRIPTION WEIGHT

E2745HH TR 125 D 3,700 lbs.

E2747HH TR 125 DA 4,000 lbs.

E2755HH TR 260 D 5,000 lbs.

E2765HH TR 260 DA 5,300 lbs.

P74001 Upgrade to a 22' hose

See page 70 for available options

SPECIFICATIONS:

 Tank Capacity ......................................................... 125, 260 gallons
 Heat Transfer Oil .........................................25, 30 gallon capacity
 Maximum BTU Input ...................................................372,000 BTU
 Construction ..................................................... Oil jacket type tank
 Temperature Control ...................................Automatic Electronic
 Tank Opening .................................................... 16" x 24" no splash 
  material loading
 Insulation ................................. 1 1/2" High Temperature Ceramic
 Agitation....................................Full Sweep, Hydraulically Driven,
  Forward / Reverse
 Material Pump ........................................2" Steel Gear, Reversible
 Heating System ........................................ Bottom fired forced air
  diesel fuel
 Suspension ........................................Torsion type axle with 5 lug
  tubeless tire
 Application Hose ...................................... 3/4" x 18' electric hose
  (22' available)
 Heated Hose ....................................Eliminates need to flush out
  hose for cleanup

CP 125 CP 260

Loading Height 54" 48"

Overall Height 80" 90"

Width 78" 93"

Length 192" 206"

Empty Weight 3,700 lbs. 5,000 lbs.

Empty Weight  
with conveyor 4,200 lbs. 5,500 lbs.

Height with conveyor 8' 6" 8' 6"

STANDARD 
FEATURES 
ON ALL "D" 
AND "DA" 
MODELS:

* Call for pricing

SAFETY INNOVATION...

The industry's lowest profile machines for better 
operator view of traffic and surrounding work area.



EQUIPMENT 69

STANDARD 
FEATURES 
ON ALL "DA" 
MODELS:

Direct-Drive FWD/REV 
Full Sweep Agitation

Direct Drive  
Air Compressor

100’ x 5/8” Reeled  
Hose & Wand

V1505 Kubota  
Diesel Engine

Diesel fired  
Beckett Burner

SAFETY INNOVATION...

Ready to apply within 1 hour

CP-260 HEATED HOSE MACHINE

Side mounted burner for  
easy maintenance

Steel enclosure for the  
control box

Ergonomic counter balanced hose boom

CP-125 HEATED HOSE MACHINE



®

Those in the know, know Takeuchi
TL12V2 Track Loader

TL8 TL10 TL12 TL12V2



Product Features & Specifications

Convenient Service and Maintenance Access

ENGINE
- U.S. EPA Final Tier 4 Emission    

Compliant
- Turbocharged and Intercooled
- DOC+DPF+SCR Exhaust After    

Treatment
- Active Power Control Power         

Management System
- Working Modes - Power and ECO
- Dial Throttle Control
- Automatic Fuel Bleed System
- High Capacity Radiator, Hydraulic 

Oil Cooler and Intercooler Mounted    
Side-by-Side on Swing Out Frame

- Dual Element Air Filter

ELECTRICAL
- 5.7” Color Multi-Informational Display
- Sealed Rocker Switches
- 12 volt System with 80 amp Alternator
- Heavy Duty, Quick Access Battery
- LED Work Lights, Front and Rear
- Back-up Alarm
- Horn

UNDERCARRIAGE AND FRAME
- 17.7” Quiet Track Design with         

Flotation Tread
- Long Track Frame
- Fully Welded Frame with Integrated 

Cross Members
- Rear Bumper Integrated into Frame
- Front and Rear Tie-Down and Lift 

Points
- Permanently Sealed Track Rollers with 

Metal Face Seals
- Double Reduction Planetary Track 

Drives
- Two-Speed Travel

HYDRAULIC & WORKING EQUIPMENT
- High Lift Vertical Boom Design
- Low Cross Member
- Cushioned Boom Cylinders
- Boom Float with Detent
- Hydraulic Pilot Controls
- Proportional Auxiliary Controls with 

Detent
- Pressure Relieving Flat Faced Coupler 

Body
- 14-Pin Connector with Push Button 

Control
- Hydraulic Self Leveling (ON/OFF)
- Mechanical Quick Coupler
- Hydraulic Quick Coupler 

      Cab - Standard Equipment
      Canopy - optional

- High Flow Auxiliary Hydraulics 40 gpm
          Cab - Standard Equipment
          Canopy - optional 

- Secondary Auxiliary Circuit             
(High Flow Only)

- Ride Control (optional)

- Pattern Change Valve (ISO or H) 
(optional)

OPERATOR’S STATION
- Pilot Operated Controls
- Deluxe High Back Adjustable          

Suspension Seat
- Rear Pivoting Seat Bar with Integrated 

Arm Rests
- Retractable 2” Seat Belt
- ROPS/FOPS Structure
- FOPS Level 2 Window Guard           

(High Flow Only)

- Polycarbonate Door and Top Guard 
(High Flow Only)

- Pressurized Cab with Roll-up Door, 
Air Conditioning, Heat, Defrost, Front 
Wiper and AM / FM / MP3 Radio with 
NOAA Weatherband (optional)

- 3” Seat Belt (optional)

- 3 Point Seat Belt (optional)

Vertical Lift Path for Balance and Stability

TAKEUCHI FLEET MANAGEMENT
- 2 Year Standard Service
- Downtime Prevention
- Remote Diagnostics
- Utilization Tracking
- Proactive Maintenance
- Control Costs



SpecificationsTOUGH, POWERFUL, RELIABLE

Oversized Lift Cylinders Lower Cross Member & StepPilot Operated Controls Battery Access Panel

Spacious operator’s station with easy to reach controls and switches.

Takeuchi’s first vertical lift compact track loader, the 
TL12V2 demonstrates a continuous commitment to 
product improvement and innovation.  It is the largest 
and most capable track loader available today and 
delivers best in class rated operating capacity (ROC), 
a completely redesigned operator’s station that 
features a color multi-information display, convenient 
rocker switches to control a wide range of functions, 
and an updated undercarriage design that enhances 
operator comfort by reducing vibration and noise 
levels. 

The TL12V2 features a powerful 111 horsepower EPA 
Final Tier 4 emissions compliant engine that includes 

the very latest in EPA Tier 4 emissions standards 
while delivering outstanding power and torque for 
the very best performance in the most demanding 
applications. 
 
Performance features include massive loader arms, 
oversized lift cylinders and pins, rear bumper with 
integrated tie downs, high capacity cooling module, 
and LED lights on the front and rear of the machine.  
The TL12V2’s interior includes an updated overhead 
door design, redesigned foot throttle, precision pilot 
controls, backlit rocker switches, convenient cup 
holders, and a deluxe high back suspension seat for 
those long hours on the jobsite.



OPERATING PERFORMANCE
Operating Weight - Canopy 12,705 lbs (5,763 kg)
                               Cab 13,040 lbs (5,915 kg)
Tipping Load 11,737 lbs (5,324 kg)
Rated Operating Capacity @ 35%* 4,107 lbs (1,863 kg)
Operating Load @ 50% of Tip Load 5,868 lbs (2,662 kg)
Bucket Breakout Force 7,874 lbs (3,571 kg)
Lift Arm Breakout Force 7,109 lbs (3,225 kg)
Traction Force 14,006 lbs (6,353 kg)
Ground Pressure 4.8 psi (33.0 kPa)
Travel Speed
           Low 5.0 mph (8.1 km / hr)
           High 7.8 mph (11.8 km / hr)
*Rated Operating Capacity for compact track loaders is rated according to          
SAE J818 at no more than 35% of the tipping load.

ENGINE

Make / Model Kubota / V3800-TIF4B
Engine Displacement 230 cu in (3.8 L)
Horsepower @ 2,400 rpm 111.3 hp (83.0 kW)
Maximum Torque @ 1,500 rpm 284 ft-lb (385 Nm)

HYDRAULIC SYSTEM

Auxiliary Flow - Primary Circuit 23.2 gpm (88.0 Lpm)
Auxiliary Flow - High Flow (optional) 40.4 gpm (153.0 Lpm)
Auxiliary Flow - 2nd Circuit (optional) 23.2 gpm (88.0 Lpm)
Hydraulic System Pressure 3,481 psi (24.0 MPa)

FLUID CAPACITIES
Engine Lubrication 13.9 qt (13.2 L)
Cooling System 19.0 qt (18.0 L)
Diesel Exhaust Fluid (DEF) 4.8 gal (18.0 L)
Fuel Tank Capacity 32.7 gal (123.9 L)
Fuel Consumption                              
(65% of Full Load)

3.8 gal / hr (14.4 L / hr)

Hydraulic Reservoir Capacity 13.2 gal (50.0 L)
Hydraulic System Capacity 24.8 gal (94.0 L)

ATTACHMENTS
Takeuchi now offers attachments for all of your Takeuchi equipment.  
See your authorized Takeuchi dealer for additional information and attachment options.

Grapple - Scrap Dozer Blades Pallet Forks Trenchers

5.7” Color Display 12 volt Accessory Outlet LED Work Lights Multi-Function Switch Bank



TL12V2 Track Loader

10
 ft 

10
 in

 (3
,29

9 m
m)

M
ax

. L
ift

 H
ei

gh
t t

o 
Bu

ck
et

 P
in

8 f
t 1

.0 
in 

(2
,45

9 m
m)

D
um

p 
H

ei
gh

t F
ul

ly
 R

ai
se

d

46.8o

Dump 
Angle 

3 ft 0.4 in (924 mm)
Max. Reach
Fully Raised

7 f
t 9

.7 
in 

(2
,38

1 m
m)

Tr
an

sp
or

t H
ei

gh
t

13 ft 3.3 in (4,045 mm)
Transport Length

10 ft 6 in (3,203 mm)
Machine Length

5 ft 7.6 in (1,717 mm)
Track Ground Contact Length

32o

Rollback 
Angle

8 ft 2.6 in (2,504 mm)
Clearance Circle 

with Bucket

5 ft 3.4 in (1,610 mm)
Clearance Circle w/o Bucket

6 ft 1.0 in (1,848 mm)
Clearance Circle Rear

6 ft 5.2 in (1,960 mm)
Overall Width w/o Bucket

17.7 in (449.5 mm)
Track Width

12.2 in (310 mm)
Ground Clearance

4 ft 8 in (1,416 mm)
Max. Mid-Height Reach

29o

Departure 
Angle



Those in the know, know Takeuchi

© 2016 Takeuchi Manufacturing (U.S.), Ltd. All Rights Reserved. Printed in the U.S.A. 
In accordance with our established policy of continued improvement, specifications and 
features are subject to change without notice. Pictures may show options other than 
standard equipment.
FORM: TL12V2 Track Loader Spec Sheet July 2016  - (TFM) s/n 412000006 ~

®

Those in the know, know Takeuchi



Quote
Date

2/10/2020

Quote #

5799

Quote Prepared For

City of Lucas
665 Country Club Road
Lucas, TX  75002

Ship To

P.O. No. Terms

Due on receipt

Rep

BP

FOB

Houston

Contact

Jeremy B.

Total

Subtotal

Sales Tax  (0.0%)

Any specified coverage rates may vary due to pavement age, porosity, method of application and/or
the width and depth of cracks.  All price quotations are provided as estimates only and are valid for
30-days unless otherwise specified. 

Your signature as agent for the above purchaser denotes acceptance of this quote. 
To convert quote to an order - sign and date below and return to SealMaster Houston.  We will
contact you upon receipt regarding any additional information and/or arrangements necessary.

_____________________________________________________
Signature                                                               Date

_____________________________________________________
Printed Name

TACOT  Inc., dba SealMaster Houston 
14435 I-10 East Freeway 
Houston TX 77015-6463
Phone: 713.453.7325  Fax: 713.453.7326

RGV-Donna Store 
506 W. Frontage Rd 
Donna TX 78537
956-420-1002

Conroe Store:
620 S. Frazier 
Conroe TX 77301 
936.756.9578

San Antonio-Marion Store 
10692 I-10 Frontage Rd 
Marion TX 78124 
830.420.3335

Item DescriptionQty U/M Rate Total

E2747HH CrackPro TR 125 DA Heated Hose
33.5 HP Diesel Engine and 100 CFM Screw Type
Air Compressor
Tank Capacity: 125 Gallons
Construction: Oil Jacket Type Tank
Heat Transfer Oil: 25 Gallon Capacity
Maximum BTU Input: Oil Jacket Tank
Temperature Control: Automatic Electronic
Tank Opening: 16" x 24" No Splash Material
Loading
Agitation: Full Sweep, Hydraulic Driven, Reversible
Material Pump: 2" Steel Gear, Reversible
Heating System: Bottom Fired Forced Air Diesel
Fuel
Suspension: Torsion Type Axle with 5 Lug Tubeless
Tire
Application Hose: 3/4" x 18' Electric Hose
Heated Hose: Eliminates need to flush out hose for
clean-up

1 ea 62,578.00 62,578.00

Freight Freight - No Charge for Delivery to City of Lucas
and on-site training

1 0.00 0.00

$62,578.00

$62,578.00

$0.00



 
Buying 

Agency:
Contractor:

Contact 

Person:
Prepared By:

Phone: Phone:

Location City, 

State:
Contract No.:

Date: Product Code:

Product

Description:

A. Item Base Unit Price (List Price)  93,750.00$      

B. Published Options (Itemize below and attach additional sheet(s) if necessary)

Code Description Cost Code Description Cost

  BUY BOARD DISCOUNT OF OF ($16,875.00)

 THE MANUFACTURERS LIST 

  

  $0.00

 Subtotal From Additional Sheet(s): $0.00

 Subtotal B: -$16,875.00

C. Unpublished Options (Itemize below and attach additional sheet(s) if necessary)

Code Description Cost Code                                     Description Cost

ABLU-84S 84" Smooth Bucket w/bolt on edge $2,696.00 -$                 

impsxd84wt 84" 4x1 tooth bucket with teeth $4,475.00 -$                 

BPL12008 96" 6 way dozer blade $8,818.00 -$                 

1RG84 84" Root Grapple Bucket $4,648.00 Subtotal From Additional Sheet(s): -$                 

Subtotal C: $20,637.00

 

D. Other Price Adjustments (E.G. Installation, Freight, Delivery, Etc.) -$              

Factory freight to delaler 471.00$         

Subtotal D: 471.00$           

E. Unit Cost of Item Before Fee & Non-Equipment Charges (A+B+C+D) 97,983.00$      

Quantity Ordered X 1

Subtotal E: 97,983.00$      

F. H-GAC Fee Calculation (From Current Fee Tables) NO CHARGE FOR BUY BOARD -$                 

G. Non-Equipment Charges (Trade-In, Extended Warranty, etc.)

-$                 

-$                 

Subtotal G: -$                 

H. Total Purchase Price (E+F+G): 97,983.00$      

(Please Type, or Print Legibly)

TAKEUCHI TL12V2 HIGH FLOW TRACK LOADER WITH CAB A/C WITH RIDE CONTROL

Note: Published Options are options submitted with the contractor's bid.

Check: Total cost of Unpublished Options (C) cannot exceed 25% of the total of the Base Unit Price plus Published Options (A+B).  For this 

transaction, the percentage is:

Estimated Delivery Date:

469-628-8586 972-548-9590

 529-16

Monday, June 10, 2019

CONTRACT PRICING WORKSHEET
for MOTOR VEHICLES In The State Of Texas

BUY BOARD SALES QUOTE

City of Lucas LANDMARK EQUIPMENT

Jeremy Bogle (jbogle@lucastexas.us) TODD EWING / GARY LYLE



  Quote
#1002252

2/18/2020

1002252

1 of 1

Bill To TOTAL
Public Works
City of Lucas
665 country club road
lucas TX 75002
United States $6,510.00

Expires: 3/19/2020

Expires Exp. Close Sales Rep Partner Shipping Method
3/19/2020 2/18/2020 Vince Chavez DirectShip

Quantity Item Tax Rate Amount

1 Rental Melter/Patcher
Melter/Patcher Rental

No $5,000.00 $5,000.00

Comments
Hot Pour Rental Rates: Daily $450.00, Weekly 
$2,000.00 Monthly $5,000.00.

Have to use GemSeal Crack Sealant in Rental Units.

No

1 Freight Sales Rep Delivery
Freight-Rep Delivery

No $100.00 $100.00

60 Flex Type 3 - 35# Right Pointe
Flex Type 3 - 35# Right Pointe

No $21.00 $1,260.00

1 Freight 3rd Party
Freight

No $150.00 $150.00

Comments
Fright is estimate for one pallet.

No

  Subtotal $6,510.00

 
PLEASE NOTE THE TAX IS AN ESTIMATE THAT CAN CHANGE BASED ON DELIVERY LOCATION.
 

Tax Total (0%) $0.00

  Total $6,510.00



Item No. 08 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 5, 2020 
 

 
Requester:  Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn   
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Discuss and provide direction to staff on proposed updates to the City of Lucas Trails Master 
Plan by adding a trail along the east side of Winningkoff Road which would connect to East 
Winningkoff Road and to the trail proposed along East Lucas Road and discuss any other 
proposed revisions to the Plan. 
 
Background Information  
 
At the Town Hall Meeting on June 7, 2015, many residents that attended the Comprehensive 
Plan meeting expressed a desire for walking/riding trails throughout the City that connected with 
other trails.  
 
Staff has been having some discussions regarding a trail on the east side of Winningkoff Road in 
conjunction with the Winningkoff Road Project and creating connectivity of a trail along 
Winningkoff Road.  
 
During the City Council meeting on February 5, 2020 the subject of trails occurred.  The City 
Council requested that the Trails Master Plan be placed on a future agenda to provide City 
Council an opportunity to discuss the need for trails in this area, as well as the desire for trails 
overall.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Current Trails Master Plan 
2. Proposed Trails Master Plan  
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
Staff was directed to bring the Trails Master Plan before City Council. 
 
City Staff recommends approval of the proposed Trails Master Plan based on citizen feedback 
during the Town Hall meeting desiring a trail network in the City of Lucas. 
  



Item No. 08 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 5, 2020 
 

 
 
Motion  
 
NA 



FORESTGROVEESTATES RD

SNIDER LN

WINNINGKOFF
RD

MAIN

LAKE LAVON

LAKE
LAVON

LAKE
LAVON

LAKE
LAVON

FM
2514

FM
 25

14

FM
 25

51

FM1378FM 2514

FM
 13

78

FM
 13

78
FM 3286

AN
GE

L
PK

W
Y

S A
NG

EL
PK

W
Y

PARKER RD

SOUTHVIEW DR

N ANGEL

PKWY

E PARKER RD

N 
CO

UN
TR

Y C
LU

B 
RD

E PARKER RD

COUNTRY

CLUB RD

CO
UN

TR
Y C

LU
B 

RD

S A
NG

EL
 PK

W
Y

COUNTRY CLUB RD
E LUCAS RD

E STACY RD
NORTH

TEXAS WATER
TREATMENT PLANT

TRINITY TRAIL

TRINITY
TRAIL

TRINITY TRAIL

TRINITY TRAIL

°
0 1,500 3,000750

Feet

LEGEND
Multi Purpose Trail

Equestrian Trail Only

Trinity Equestrian Trail
POWER LINE
PARK AND OPEN SPACE
CELEBRATION PARK

LAKE
FEMA FLOODPLAIN
CREEK LINE

_̂CITY HALL

JzFIRE DEPARTMENT

n{SCHOOL

îCHURCH

ïCEMETERIES

%WATER TOWER

Text

07/29/19

CURRENT



FORESTGROVEESTATES RD

SNIDER LN

WINNINGKOFF
RD

MAIN

LAKE LAVON

LAKE
LAVON

LAKE
LAVON

LAKE
LAVON

FM
2514

FM
 25

14

FM
 25

51

FM1378FM 2514

FM
 13

78

FM
 13

78
FM 3286

AN
GE

L
PK

W
Y

S A
NG

EL
PK

W
Y

PARKER RD

SOUTHVIEW DR

N ANGEL

PKWY

E PARKER RD

N 
CO

UN
TR

Y C
LU

B 
RD

E PARKER RD

COUNTRY

CLUB RD

CO
UN

TR
Y C

LU
B 

RD

S A
NG

EL
 PK

W
Y

COUNTRY CLUB RD
E LUCAS RD

E STACY RD
NORTH

TEXAS WATER
TREATMENT PLANT

TRINITY TRAIL

TRINITY
TRAIL

TRINITY TRAIL

TRINITY TRAIL

°
0 1,500 3,000750

Feet

LEGEND
Multi Purpose Trail

Equestrian Trail Only

Trinity Equestrian Trail
POWER LINE
PARK AND OPEN SPACE
CELEBRATION PARK

LAKE
FEMA FLOODPLAIN
CREEK LINE

_̂CITY HALL

JzFIRE DEPARTMENT

n{SCHOOL

îCHURCH

ïCEMETERIES

%WATER TOWER

Text

07/29/19

PROPOSED

PROPOSED WINNINGKOFF TRAIL SHOWN IN ORANGE



Item No. 09 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 5, 2020 
 

Requester: City Councilmember Wayne Millsap  
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Discuss and consider 1) an update on the Customer City Coalition activities relating to the North 
Texas Municipal Water District; 2) next steps with the Coalition; and (3) authorizing the Mayor 
to write the Public Utility Commission (PUC) expressing the City of Lucas’ support for the 
position asserted by the Cities of Garland, Mesquite, Plano and Richardson and urging the 
Commission to initiate the cost-of-service hearing being sought by those cities.  
 
Background Information  
 
The NTMWD is made up of 13 non-member customer cities, 14 customer cities, and 20 special 
utility districts. The City of Lucas is one of the 13 non-member customer cities. 
 
On November 18, 2019, the City of Rowlett hosted a meeting with 11 of the 14 customer cities, 
and based on discussions, there was an interest to form a coalition among the non‐member 
customer entities. Non‐member customer entities share common concerns that include:  
 

• The contractual “Take-or-Pay” rate structure is outdated and disincentivizes water 
conservation while forcing non-member customer entities to pay for water they do not 
use; 

 
• The lack of representation and communication in decisions made by the North Texas 

Municipal Water District reduces transparency and is detrimental to the governance of 
non-member customer entities’ residents and businesses; 

 
• The prohibition preventing non-member customer entities to become a member city; and 
 
• A discriminatory water rate methodology that charges non-member customer entities more 

than member cities. 
 
The goal of forming a coalition of non-member customer cities is to resolve common concerns 
and to work as a group with the North Texas Municipal Water District. 
 
The Lucas City Council passed Resolution R 2019-12-00494 on December 19, 2019, supporting 
the Coalition of Non-Member Customer Entities of the NTMWD. 
 
On January 17, 2020, the City Manager received an update on a matter before the Public Utility 
Commission (PUC) relating to NTMWD rates charged to member cities.  On February 7, 2020, 
Rowlett Mayor Tammy Dana-Bashian sent a letter of support of the position of four of the 
NTMWD member cities given that Rowlett is the largest of the customer cities serviced by 



Item No. 09 
 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

March 5, 2020 
 

NTMWD.  Tom Kula, NTMWD Executive Director, sent two emails to the customer cities on 
February 7 and 10, 2020, about the PUC proceedings. 
 
Information from the February 28, 2020 meeting in Rowlett will be provided at the City Council 
meeting on March 5, 2020. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 

1. Presentation from November 18, 2019, meeting 
2. Letter of Invitation from City of Rowlett, November 25, 2019 
3. Resolution R 2019-12-00494  
4. Update on NTMWD PUC Rate Appeal, January 17, 2020 
5. Letter from City of Rowlett to PUC, February 7, 2020 
6. Emails from Kula to Customer Cities, February 7 and 10, 2020 

 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to authorize/not authorize the Mayor to write the Public Utility Commission 
(PUC) expressing the City of Lucas’ support for the position asserted by the Cities of Garland, 
Mesquite, Plano and Richardson and urging the Commission to initiate the cost-of-service 
hearing being sought by those cities. 
 
I make a motion to direct the City Manager to notify the Coalition that the City of Lucas will/will 
not participate as a member of the Coalition. 
 
 
 



















































 
 

City of Rowlett ~ www.rowlett.com 
4000 Main Street  Rowlett, TX  75088 

Phone ~ 972.412.6100  Fax ~ 972.412.6118 

 

   

   

 
November 25, 2019 
 
 
Entity Name and Address 
 
 
Re: Invitation to join a coalition of the non‐member customer entities of the North Texas Municipal Water 
District 
 
My name is Tammy Dana‐Bashian and I am the Mayor of the City of Rowlett, Texas. I would like to invite 
you to join a coalition of the non‐member customer entities of the North Texas Municipal Water District 
(NTMWD). 
 
The City of Rowlett is one of 34 non‐member entities of the NTMWD. The entire NTMWD is made up of 
13 member cities, and 14 customer cities and 20 special utility districts. You are one of those 34 non‐
member customer entities. 
 
Non‐member customer entities share common concerns that include 1) a lack of any voice or participation 
in  decisions made  by  the  NTMWD  that  affect  our  residents  and  businesses,  2)  outdated  contractual 
provisions that disincentivize water conservation, and 3) rates that are higher than member cities. 
 
On November 18, 2019, the City of Rowlett hosted a meeting of 11 of the 14 customer cities. Based on 
this discussion, there  is  interest to form a coalition among the non‐member customer entities and we 
would like you to consider joining. The group requested a draft resolution expressing interest to create 
such a coalition and further recommended that the offer be made to all non‐member customer entities. 
I have attached the draft resolution which expresses a desire to join the coalition. I have also included a 
copy of the powerpoint presented at this meeting.  
 
We also want you to know that we notified the NTMWD of the November 18th meeting. It is our intent to 
be transparent while still providing the latitude for the non‐member customer entities to decide how this 
coalition will form and what its focus will be. 
 
The initial steps are as follows: 
 

1. Circulate the invitation and draft resolution among all 34 non‐member customer entities 
2. Share the presentation discussed at the November 18th meeting with the non‐member customer 

entities 
3. Non‐member customer entities desiring to join should adopt the draft resolution in December or 

January 

A well-planned lakeside community  
of quality neighborhoods,  

distinctive amenities, 
 diverse employment, and  

cultural charm. 
THE place to live, work and play. 

Mayor ~ Tammy Dana-Bashian 
Mayor Pro Tem – Martha Brown 
Deputy Mayor Pro Tem ~  
     Matt Grubisich  
City Council ~  
     Robert Blake Margolis  
     Brownie Sherrill 
     Whitney P. Laning 
     Pamela Bell  
 

City Manager ~ Brian Funderburk 
 



2 | 2 

 

4. Goal is to have the first meeting in February 2020 who will then determine the actual structure 
and mission of the coalition 
 

The initial resolution expressing interest to form the coalition doesn’t have to be exact. Each entity may 
wish to modify the language to meet their needs with the basic purpose to form a group of interested 
non‐member customer entities to come together to resolve common concerns and to work as a group 
with our common water provider. Once the group makes a recommendation for the actual structure and 
mission, we would have a more firm, enabling resolution for the group to adopt. 
 
Please  provide  a  point  of  contact  for  future  communications  regarding  this matter. We would  like  a 
contact  name,  email  and  phone  number. We would  also  appreciate  any  updates  from  your  point  of 
contact on action to have or anticipate having in regard to joining the coalition that we can share with the 
entire group. You can communicate the point of contact or reach out to us if you have any questions about 
the  resolution, presentation, or  the meeting. My cell number  is 469‐203‐9750 and my email  is  tdana‐
bashian@rowlett.com. Or you can contact my City Manager, Brian Funderburk at 972‐948‐8150 or by 
email at bfunderburk@rowlett.com. Brian and I would be glad to meet with you or talk by phone at your 
choice. Thanks. 
 

 
Tammy Dana‐Bashian 
Mayor 



 
City of Lucas   Page 1 
Resolution R 2019-12-00494 
Approved:  December 19, 2019  

Resolution R 2019-12-00494 
 (Supporting Coalition of Non-Member Customer Entities of NTMWD) 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LUCAS APPROVING A DESIRE TO JOIN A 
COALITION OF NON-MEMBER CUSTOMER ENTITIES OF THE NORTH TEXAS 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the North Texas Municipal Water District is a utility district consisting of 13 member 
cities, and 34 “non-member customer entities” made up of 14 customer cities and 20 special utility districts; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lucas is one of the 34 non-member customer entities of the North Texas 
Municipal Water District; and 
 

WHEREAS, the North Texas Municipal Water District is the only realistic source of water for 
thousands of users in the non-member customer entities populations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, non-member customer entities share common concerns that include 1) a lack of any 
voice or participation in decisions made by the North Texas Municipal Water District that affect our 
residents and businesses, 2) outdated contractual provisions that disincentivize water conservation, and 3) 
rates that are higher than member cities. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF LUCAS: 
 
SECTION 1: That the City of Lucas shares the same concerns as other non-member customer entities of 
the North Texas Municipal Water District as follows: 

 
• The contractual “Take-or-Pay” rate structure is outdated and disincentivizes water conservation 

while forcing non-member customer entities to pay for water they do not use; 
 
• The lack of representation and communication in decisions made by the North Texas Municipal 

Water District reduces transparency and is detrimental to the governance of non-member 
customer entities residents and businesses; 

 
• The prohibition preventing non-member customer entities to become a member city; and 
 
• A discriminatory water rate methodology that charges non-member customer entities more than 

member cities. 
 

• Have representation from the Coalition attend future NTMWD Board Meetings open to the public 
and report back status to the Coalition. 

 
SECTION 2: That the City of Lucas expresses its desire to join with other non-member customer entities 
to form a coalition that will identify and evaluate issues common to our organizations and give voice to our 
residents and businesses. 
 
SECTION 3: This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage. 
  



 
City of Lucas   Page 2 
Resolution R 2019-12-00494 
Approved:  December 19, 2019  

 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS     ATTEST  
 
 
_____________________________________  __________________________________ 
Jim Olk, Mayor      Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 



Update on NTMWD PUC Rate Appeal 
(1/10/2020) 

In August, 2019, we updated TWCA’s membership on the Public Utility Commission of Texas’s 
(“PUC”) review of an appeal of wholesale rates charged by the North Texas Municipal Water 
District (“NTMWD”). The case had been abated to allow the parties to the case—NTMWD and its 
13 Member Cities—to attempt to negotiate a settlement. Following lengthy negotiations by the 
parties, the four Member Cities that filed the original petition filed a request on December 13 that 
the PUC’s three-member panel of Commissioners place the matter back on its public meeting 
agenda for consideration and final ruling at the earliest convenience and also indicated their 
willingness to continue settlement discussions in the meantime. As of the date of this update, the 
PUC has not yet scheduled the case for an upcoming public meeting.  

The background of this case revolves around the Texas Constitution. Before modifying a wholesale 
water rate set pursuant to a contract, the Constitution requires the PUC Commissioners to 
determine first whether the contract rate violates the public interest. The PUC adopted a set of 
criteria in its “public interest” rule to make those public interest determinations. In light of the 
Constitutional safeguards, the public interest rule has historically been interpreted to give 
significant deference to contracts. Neither the PUC, nor the TCEQ before it, has ever found that a 
wholesale rate violates the public interest. 

The Proposal for Decision (“PFD”) issued by the Administrative Law Judges who presided over 
the hearing recommended that the PUC find that the 2017 NTMWD rates violate the public 
interest. An ultimate finding by the PUC that the rates adversely affect the public interest would 
initiate the first-ever rate hearing in a wholesale rate appeal of this kind. 

As explained in our August update, the District and several entities that filed amicus curiae briefs 
have argued to the PUC Commissioners that applicable Court opinions only allow the PUC to 
modify contracts and set wholesale water service rates in “extraordinary circumstances.” That is 
consistent with the previous “significant deference” standard that historically governs similar rate 
appeals. 

In December, the four Petitioning Cities asked the PUC Commissioners to finally rule on the PFD, 
which the Commissioners’ previously discussed on May 23, 2019. At the May 23 meeting, the 
Commissioners expressed disapproval of some conclusions reached in the PFD. For instance, the 
PUC’s Chair noted that the annual minimum take-or-pay obligation based on historic usage 
effectively constitutes an acceptable demand charge for each Member City.  

However, the Commissioners expressed doubt that the PUC owes the high level of contract 
deference that has historically been applied. One Commissioner seemed to suggest that the 
deference standard for wholesale water service specifically should be much lower. All 
Commissioners agreed that the PUC has jurisdiction to decide the public interest question in the 
case despite arguments that statutes that protect the bond-repayment component of the parties’ 
contract preempts the PUC’s jurisdiction. 

Two subsequent appeals (for the 2018 and 2019 NTMWD rates) filed with the PUC are currently 
abated waiting the outcome of the 2017 appeal. The four petitioning cities filed a petition 
appealing NTMWD’s 2020 rates on December 19, 2019. That case has not yet been abated but 
could be by agreement of the parties as happened for the 2018 and 2019 cases. 

Under the PUC’s rules, if the Commissioners conclude that the 2017 rate violates the public 
interest, the case will proceed to a cost-of-service hearing to set a new rate. If the Commissioners 
conclude that the 2017 rate does not violate the public interest, the parties to the case will have an 
opportunity to appeal that ruling to Travis County District Court. 

The PUC could place this matter back on its agenda at any time, and we will provide further update 
when this occurs. 



 
 

City of Rowlett ~ www.rowlett.com 
4000 Main Street  Rowlett, TX  75088 

Phone ~ 972.412.6100  Fax ~ 972.412.6118 
                     
 

 

  

  

 

February 7, 2020 

 
 
Commissioner DeAnn T. Walker   Commissioner Arthur C. D’Andrea 
Public Utility Commission of Texas   Public Utility Commission of Texas 
PO Box 13326      PO Box 13326 
Austin, TX 78711-3326    Austin, TX 78711-3326 
ChairmanWalker@puc.texas.gov   CommissionerDAndrea@puc.texas.gov 
 
Commissioner Shelly Botkin 
Public Utility Commission of Texas 
PO Box 13326 
Austin, TX 78711-3326 
CommissionerBotkin@puc.texas.gov 
 
 
Re: Docket No. 46662; SOAH Docket No. 473-17-4964.WS - Petition of the Cities of Garland, 

Mesquite, Plano and Richardson Appealing the Decision by North Texas Municipal Water 
District Affecting Wholesale Water Rates. 

 
Dear Commissioners: 
 
I am writing to you in my capacity as the Mayor of the City of Rowlett, the largest customer City 
of the North Texas Municipal Water District (District).  On behalf of the City, we express our 
support for the position asserted by the Cities of Garland, Mesquite, Plano and Richardson, and 
urge the Commission to initiate the cost-of-service hearing sought by those cities.  
 
With a current population of over 66,000 residents, Rowlett is a water retailer serving over 20,000 
customer accounts.  The City of Rowlett has been a wholesale customer of the District for 54 
years.  Under the compulsory take-or-pay structure, Rowlett has paid nearly $20 million for over 
10 billion gallons of water that was not received or used by Rowlett citizens or customers. Based 
on the current cost structure in place by the District, we will continue to be charged every year for 
hundreds of millions of gallons of water that we do not use.   
 
The most common complaint we address with our citizens is the high cost of water compared to 
surrounding cities, which correlates directly to the take-or-pay cost structure in place by the 
District for wholesale water.  Small communities such as Rowlett have no ability to mitigate the 
negative impact of the take-or-pay structure due to limited resources.  And, we have no choice 
but to purchase water from the District as we have no feasible alternative. 
 

A well-planned lakeside community  
of quality neighborhoods,  

distinctive amenities, 
 diverse employment, and  

cultural charm. 
THE place to live, work and play. 

 

Mayor ~ Tammy Dana-Bashian 
Mayor Pro Tem – Martha Brown 
Deputy Mayor Pro Tem ~  
     Matt Grubisich  
City Council ~  
     Robert Blake Margolis  
     Brownie Sherrill 
     Whitney P. Laning 
     Pamela Bell  
 

City Manager ~ Brian Funderburk 
 
 

 

           

mailto:ChairmanWalker@puc.texas.gov
mailto:CommissionerDAndrea@puc.texas.gov
mailto:CommissionerBotkin@puc.texas.gov


The take-or-pay structure is fundamentally flawed; it does not ensure that users pay cost-based 
rates, as the rates never reset over the term of the contract to more accurately reflect current 
actual usage of the District’s customer base.  And in 2015, the District adopted a permanent water 
conservation policy that recommended adoption of increasing tiered retail water rates to spur 
even higher levels of water conservation. As a result, Rowlett achieved significant water 
conservation, even though the take-or-pay provision financially disincentivizes this approach. 
Permanent water conservation policies put communities in direct conflict to sell the water needed 
to support their utility systems due to the take-or-pay provision. Rowlett believes conservation is 
needed, but we did not sign up for policies adopted unilaterally by the District that change the 
rules of the game without allowing water providers the ability to reset their projected water use 
under the new rules.  

Over the years that Rowlett has been a customer city, the District’s budget and rates have grown 
exponentially with little to no regulatory oversight or checks and balances.  No regulatory authority 
has ever reviewed the District’s annual costs, or its cost structure across the customer base.  
Basic principles of fairness compel a fair evaluation of the rate structure by the Commission. 

We urge the Commission to initiate a cost-of-service hearing, which will provide an opportunity 
for all of the District’s wholesale water customers to participate and for the Commission to set just 
and reasonable rates for the District. 

Sincerely, 

Mayor Tammy Dana-Bashian 
City of Rowlett, Texas 







Item No. 10 
 

 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 5, 2020 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Executive Session:  
 
An Executive Session is not scheduled for this meeting.  
 
As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may 
convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from 
the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. This meeting 
is closed to the public as provided in the Texas Government Code.  
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA   
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 



Item No. 11 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Lucas 
City Council Agenda Request 

March 5, 2020 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Reconvene from Executive Session and take any action necessary as a result of the Executive 
Session.  
 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 


	00 - 03-05-22020 agenda
	AGENDA
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	March 5, 2020
	7:00 PM
	City Hall – Council Chambers
	665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas
	Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Lucas City Council will be held on Thursday, March 5, 2020 at 7:00 pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be discussed.  As authorized ...
	Call to Order
	Citizen Input
	Community Interest
	Consent Agenda
	Regular Agenda
	Executive Session Agenda
	Certification

	01 - Citizen Input cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	02 - Community Interest
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	03 - Consent Agenda cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	03a - 02-20-2020 cc minutes
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	February 20, 2020
	7:00 P.M.
	City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas
	MINUTES
	Consent Agenda
	Regular Agenda

	03b - Re-allocated Funding for Capital Projects for FY 19-20
	FY 18-19 PROJECT LISTING

	03c - QTRLY INVESTMENT REPORT 12-2019
	03d - Resolution R 2020-03-00498  Accepting Voluntary Annexation Petition McCreary Donihoo
	03e - Resolution R 2020-03-00499 Terminating ROW agreement
	03ee - Himmelreich Right of Way Lease Agreement
	04 - Forest Creek Park Sign cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	04a - Sign Quotes
	From: Roger Chung <roger@legacysignsoftexas.com>  Sent: Monday, February 17, 2020 1:21 PM To: Donna Bradshaw <dbradshaw@lucastexas.us> Subject: Re: City of Lucas~Forest Creek Estates sign

	05 - FY 2018-2019 CAFR cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	06 - Admend Kingwood Lemontree Drainage cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	06 a - Birkhoff Drainage Amend 1
	07 - Gradall CS
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	07 a - SealMaster-Catalog-CrackPro-Heated-Hose (1)
	07 b -TL12V2 brochure
	07 c -Crack Pro Quote
	07 d -  TL12V2 Estimate
	07 e - renting estimates Crack Sealing machine
	08 - Trails Master plan CS
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	08 a- Current Trails Master Plan  REV SD
	08 b - Trails Master Plan_WINNINGKOFF ADDITION  REV SD
	09 - Customer Citiy Coalition Update cs
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	09 a - presentation of coalition of cities
	09 b - Letter of invitation to join NTMWD Customer Cities Coalition
	09 c - Resolution R 2019-12-00494 Supporting entites of NTMWD
	09 d - Update on NTMWD PUC Rate Appeal - 01.17.2020
	09 e - Rowlett NTMWD Letter From Mayor to - PUC 2.6.20
	09 f - Email Kula to Customer Cities - 02-10-2020
	10 - Executive Session
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	11 - Reconvene from Exec Sess
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion




